
 
 
 
 
 

1480 Harbour Drive 

Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 

 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
Monday, May 11, 2020 

AGENDA 

 

Items marked with *** are actionable items that require a vote 

THIS IS THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE NINE MEMBER EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE: HOWEVER, MEMBER GOVERNMENTS ARE 
INVITED AND ENCOURAGED TO ATTEND. COPIES OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS ARE AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST. 

For Further Information Call 910-395-4553 

1. Call to Order & Welcome 

2. Invocation & Pledge 

3. Introductions 

4. Resolution Amending Electronic Meeting Participation Policy (see attachment) *** 

5. Public Comment 

6. Approval Minutes  
a. December 9, 2019 (see attachment) *** 
b. February 10, 2020 (see attachment) *** 

7. Finance Reports  
a. Budget Adjustments through March 31, 2020 (see attachment) *** 
b. Budget Adjustments through April 30, 2020 (see attachment) ***  
c. Budget Report through March 31, 2020 (see attachment) *** 
d. Presentation of Draft FY 2020-2021 Budget Ordinance (see attachment) 
e. Set a budget public hearing for June 8, 2020 *** 

8. Resolution Amending Personnel Policy (see attachment) *** 

9. Staff Reports 
a. Executive Director 
b. Program Directors 

10. Chairman & Member Comments 

11. Adjournment *** 

 

Next Meeting: Monday, June 8, 2020, 11:00 am including FY 20-21 Budget Public Hearing  

1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page left blank on purpose. 

2



CAPE FEAR COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

RESOLUTION AMENDING ELECTRONIC MEETING PARTICIPATION POLICY 

 

WHEREAS the Cape Fear Council of Governments (CFCOG) is a regional council of 

governments organized pursuant to N.C.G.S. sections 160A-470 through 478; 

 

WHEREAS the CFCOG is designated by the State of North Carolina as the Lead Regional 

Organization for Region O, serving Brunswick, Columbus, New Hanover, and Pender counties;  

 

WHEREAS the Executive Committee is the governing board of the CFCOG; 

 

WHEREAS the Executive Committee has adopted an electronic meeting participation policy, last 

updated on December 6, 2019; and 

 

WHEREAS the Executive Committee desires to update the CFCOG Personnel Policy with to 

reflect changes to remote meeting requirements contained in Session Law 2020-03; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Executive Committee of the Cape Fear Council 

of Governments amends the Electronic Meeting Participation Policy as follows: 

 

The Cape Fear Council of Governments Executive Committee, and any of its 

subcommittees / and advisory boards, may meet electronically or permit their members to 

may participate remotely electronically, by way of videoconferencing, teleconferencing, 

Skype, or similar devices or applications or other means of simultaneous electronic 

communication, subject to the following mandated stipulations:  

 

1. It is fully understood that remote Electronic meetings and electronic participation 

is are not the preferred manner of participation.  

2. This policy may be used only if no less than three members are physically present.  

2. The Clerk to the Board shall provide a location and means whereby members of the 

public may view or listen to the an electronic meeting and the notice of the meeting 

required by this Article shall specify that location. 

3. In the case of a declared emergency or other special circumstance where a physical 

meeting location is not available to the public, the location of an electronic meeting 

may be a location on the internet, provided that the public is given a means to view 

or listen to a live stream of the meeting. 

3.4. The notice of an electronic meeting may require that public comment be submitted 

in advance of the meeting to be read aloud during the public comment portion of 

the meeting.  

 

Adopted this 11th day of May 2020. 

 

 

 

 ____________________________    ___________________________ 

Trent Burroughs, Chairman     April D. Radford, Clerk 

3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page left blank on purpose. 

4



 
1480 Harbour Drive 

Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 
 

 

Page 1 of 3 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
December 9, 2019 • 11:00 AM 

MINUTES 

Members Present:        
Teresa Batts  George Brown, Jr. Trent Burroughs Walt Eccard  Mike Forte 
Jan Dawson  Charlie Rivenbark 

Members Absent: 
Jonathan Barfield, Jr. Lamont Grate  

CFCOG Staff Present:     
Ginger Brick  Amy Doss  Patrick Flanagan Wes MacLeod  Holly Pilson 
April Radford  Allen Serkin  Dawn Tucker 

Guest: 
Jim Kornagay 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Call to Order, Welcome, Invocation, Introductions & Pledge:  
Mr. Burroughs, called the meeting to order & welcomed everyone at 11:02AM. Mr. Rivenbark 
gave the invocation and Mr. Forte led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Approval of October 14, 2019 Minutes:  
There was no discussion. Mr. Forte moved to approve the October 14, 2019 minutes, and Mr. 
Eccard seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 

3. Finance Committee Report:  
Ms. Tucker informed the board that the auditors will present the audit report at the next 
Executive Committee Meeting and that there was no budget adjustment. Ms. Tucker addressed 
questions from the board about the audit. 

Ms. Tucker presented the Finance Report through October 31, 2019. There were no questions 
from the Executive Committee. Mr. Forte moved to approve the Finance Report, and Mr. Brown 
seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 

4. Director’s Reports:  
Mr. MacLeod introduced the new LGS staff; Ms. Amy Doss, Planner (part-time) and Mr. Patrick 
Flanagan, Regional Planner and Cape Fear RPO Director. 

Mr. Serkin presented amendments for the CFCOG bylaws. Discussion ensued. A motion was 
made by Mr. Eccard to accept the amendments to present to the General Membership at the 
Annual Meeting in February for approval, seconded by Mr. Brown. The motion carried 
unanimously. 

Mr. Serkin presented proposed 2020 Executive Committee Meeting schedule. After discussion 
a motion was made by Mr. Forte to accept the 2020 schedule and seconded by Mr. Brown. The 
motion carried unanimously. 

Mr. Serkin presented the current CFCOG Executive Committee roster and asked for 
nominations for re-election at the Annual Meeting.  Mr. Forte moved to nominate Mr. 

5



 
1480 Harbour Drive 

Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 
 

 

Page 2 of 3 

Burroughs to remain the Chairman, seconded by Mr. Eccard. The motion carried unanimously. 
Mr. Rivenbark nominated Mr. Brown to remain the Vice-Chairman and seconded by Mr. Forte. 
The motion carried unanimously. Mr. Eccard nominated Mr. Rivenbark to remain the 
Secretary/Treasurer and seconded by Mr. Brown. The motion carried unanimously. Mr. 
Rivenbark motioned to nominate the rest of the current Executive Committee members to the 
at-large seats and seconded by Ms. Dawson. The motion carried unanimously. Mr. Serkin 
reminded the board of their electronic participation policy.  Mr. Rivenbark motioned to amend 
the policy to eliminate the 33% electronic participation threshold and seconded by Mr. Eccard. 
The motion carried unanimously.   

The Slate of Officers to be presented to the Board for approval at the Annual Meeting February 
27, 2020 is as follows: 

Commissioner Trent Burroughs – Chairman 
Chairman George Brown, Jr. – Vice-Chairman 
Council Member Charlie Rivenbark – Secretary/Treasurer 
Commissioner Mike Forte – Member 
Chair Julia Olson-Boseman – Member 
Councilwoman Teresa Batts – Member 
Commissioner Jan Dawson – Member 
Mayor Walt Eccard – Member 
Mayor Pro-Tem Lamont Grate - Member 

Mr. Serkin requested the Executive Committee appoint a CFCOG board member to represent 
the CFCOG on the North Carolina Association of Regional Councils of Governments “Forum”. 
After discussion among the members Ms. Batts volunteered. A motion was made by Mr. Eccard 
and seconded by Mr. Brown to appoint Ms. Batts represent the CFCOG on the Forum. The 
motion carried unanimously. 

Mr. Serkin provided information and asked the Executive Committee for their input on the 
Annual Meeting. He stated there will be no charge for CFCOG General Membership 
representatives to attend the meeting. There was discussion about a possible guest speaker on 
the topic of 2020 Census. The board requested the meeting end no later than 8:30PM. 

5. Department Report:  
Ms. Jones presented the Area Agency on Aging report. There were no questions from executive 
committee. 

Mr. Serkin presented the Continuum of Care report on behalf of Ms. Zielinski. Mr. Serkin 
addressed questions from the executive committee. 

Mr. MacLeod presented the Local Government Services report. Mr. MacLeod addressed 
questions from the executive committee. 

Ms. Brick presented the Workforce Development report. Ms. Brick addressed questions from 

the executive committee.  

6



 
1480 Harbour Drive 

Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 
 

 

Page 3 of 3 

6. Chairman’s Comments:  
Mr. Burroughs thanks all and wish all a safe and happy holiday. 

7. Executive Committee Members’ Comments:  
There were no comments from the executive committee.  

Mr. Serkin reminded the executive committee of the SOG Ethics Webinar being hosted at the 
CFCOG on Tuesday, December 10, 2019. 

8. Next Executive Committee Meeting: 
May 11, 2020 11:00 am 

9. Adjournment:  
Mr. Burroughs motioned to adjourn the meeting. The motion carried unanimously. The 
meeting ended at 12:34PM. 

Respectfully submitted,      
 
 
 
_________________________________________   ________________________________________ 
April D. Radford, Clerk to the Board   Trent Burroughs, Chairman 
 

7



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page left blank on purpose. 

8



 
1480 Harbour Drive 

Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 
 

 

Page 1 of 2 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
February 10, 2020 • 11:00 AM 

MINUTES 

Members Present:        
*Teresa Batts  George Brown, Jr. Trent Burroughs Mike Forte Jan Dawson 
*Lamont Grate  Charlie Rivenbark *Julia Olson Bozeman 
(* indicates via remote) 

Members Absent: 
Walt Eccard 

CFCOG Staff Present:     
Wes MacLeod  Lashauna Parker Holly Pilson April Radford  Allen Serkin  
Dawn Tucker  Maegan Zielinski 

Guest: 
Phillip King, RSM US LLP Mayor Glenn Marshall  Commissioner Ryan Merrill 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Call to Order, Welcome, Invocation, Introductions & Pledge:  
Mr. Burroughs, called the meeting to order & welcomed everyone at 11:16 am. Ms. Dawson gave the 
invocation and Mr. Forte led the Pledge of Allegiance. The members, staff, and guests introduced 
themselves. 

Approve FY18/19 Audit 
Mr. King from RSM presented the 18/19 audit report. There were no significant items to report. Mr. King 
addressed questions from the Executive Committee. Mr. Brown moved to approve the audit, and Mr. Forte 
seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 

Approval of December 9, 2019 Minutes:  
Mr. Serkin proposed a minor change to the minutes under the Executive Director’s Report to reflect the 
nomination of the at-large Executive Committee members for presentation to the General Membership at 
the Annual Meeting. Mr. Brown moved to accept the changes and approve the minutes, and Ms. Dawson 
seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 

Finance Report:  
Ms. Tucker presented the budget adjustment for the period ending December 31, 2019. There were no 
questions from the Executive Committee. Ms. Tucker next presented the financial report through December 
31, 2019. There were no questions from the Executive Committee. Mr. Brown moved to approve both the 
budget adjustment and financial report, and Mr. Rivenbark seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 

Executive Director’s Report:  
Mr. Serkin presented a resolution establishing bank signatories to the Executive Committee. There were no 
questions from the Executive Committee. Mr. Rivenbark moved to approve the resolution and seconded by 
Mr. Brown. The motion carried unanimously. 

Mr. Serkin presented the proposed agenda for the 2020 Annual Meeting. There were no questions from the 
Executive Committee. Mr. Forte moved to accept the agenda and seconded by Mr. Brown. The motion 
carried unanimously. 

Mr. Grate joined the meeting at 11:50 am. 

Mr. Serkin presented the Annual Meeting’s program and timeline. The meeting will start at 6:00 pm, 30 

minutes earlier than prior years. There will be no tables on the stage. The head table will be head table in 

front of the stage. 

9



 
1480 Harbour Drive 

Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 
 

 

Page 2 of 2 

Mr. Serkin informed the Executive Committee that due to the fact the CFCOG office is full and staff members 
are doubling up in offices and working in other locations, the CFCOG is leasing additional office space in the 
adjacent building to accommodate the Workforce Development department. 

Department Report:  
Ms. Jones presented the Area Agency on Aging report. There were no questions from Executive Committee. 

Ms. Zielinski presented the Continuum of Care report. Mr. Zielinski addressed questions from the Executive 
Committee. 

Mr. MacLeod presented the Local Government Services report. There were no questions from the Executive 
Committee. 

Ms. Parker presented the Workforce Development report on behalf of Ms. Brick. Ms. Parker addressed 

questions from the Executive Committee. Mr. Serkin will have Ms. Brick contact Mr. Brown and Mr. 

Burroughs in reference to Workforce Development Board questions. 

Chairman’s Comments:  
Mr. Burroughs thanked Mr. Serkin for all his work. 

Executive Committee Members’ Comments:  
There were no comments from the Executive Committee.  

Next Executive Committee Meeting: 
May 11, 2020 11:00 am 

Annual Meeting Reminder: 
Thursday, February 27, 2020 6:00 pm, at The Brunswick Center 1010 Stone Chimney Road, Supply, NC 

Adjournment:  
Ms. Dawson motioned to adjourn the meeting, and Mr. Brown seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
The meeting ended at 12:29 pm. 

Respectfully submitted,      
 
 
 
_________________________________________   ________________________________________ 
April D. Radford, Clerk to the Board   Trent Burroughs, Chairman 
 

10



Approved Adjusted Adjustment

Departments Budget Budget Amount

1. Continuum of Care 331,691$        349,417$        17,726$          

2. Local Government Services 605,456          606,956          1,500              

3. Area Agency on Aging 4,731,388       4,731,388       -                  

4. Workforce Development 7,906,679       8,016,679       110,000          

5. General Fund 32,000            32,000            -                  

Total Expenditures 13,607,214$  13,736,440$  129,226$        

6. Administration (Included in 1-4) 404,972$        404,972$        -$                

Justification for Budget Adjustments

1. Continuum of Care: Increase due to additional funding for COVID‐19 awarded to Good Shepherd

2. Local Government Services: Water Quality Planning Grant, Carolina Beach local match pass thru to Contractor

3. Area Agency on Aging: no change

4. Workforce Development: Increase for Florence Disaster funding final award and carryforward more than budgeted

5. General Fund: no change

6. Administration: no change

Trent Burroughs, Chairperson Dawn Tucker, Finance Officer

Date

CAPE	FEAR	COUNCIL	OF	GOVERNMENTS
Budget Adjustments - through 3/31/19

FY 2019-2020

11



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page left blank on purpose. 

12



Approved Adjusted Adjustment

Departments Budget Budget Amount

1. Continuum of Care 349,417$        349,417$        0$                   

2. Local Government Services 606,956          606,956          (0)                    

3. Area Agency on Aging 4,731,388       5,147,021       415,633          

4. Workforce Development 8,016,679       8,516,679       500,000          

5. General Fund 32,000            32,000            -                  

Total Expenditures 13,736,440$   14,652,073$   915,633$        

6. Administration (Included in 1-4) 404,972$        404,972$        -$                

Justification for Budget Adjustments

1. Continuum of Care:

2. Local Government Services:

3. Area Agency on Aging: Increase due to additional funding from the Families First Act for meals 

provided to seniors and  the annual allotment for fan purchases.  

4. Workforce Development: Increase due to COVID-19 Disaster funds

5. General Fund:

6. Administration:

Trent Burroughs, Chairperson Dawn Tucker, Finance Officer

Date

CAPE	FEAR	COUNCIL	OF	GOVERNMENTS
Budget Adjustments - through 4/30/19

FY 2019-2020

13



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page left blank on purpose. 

14



Cash Balance in Bank 164,303$  

North Carolina Cash Management Investments 451,390    

Total Cash on Hand 615,693$  

Adjusted Jul - Mar Reserve Remaining Percent

Departments Budget Revenues Balance Budget Received

Continuum of Care 349,417$            157,772$        70,500$        121,145$        57%

Local Gov Services 606,956$            182,393         20,000         404,563         31%

Area Agency on Aging 4,731,388$         3,122,761      ‐               1,608,627      66%

Workforce Development 8,016,679$         2,660,063      2,697,713   2,658,902      50%

General Fund 32,000                 185,427         (153,427)       579%

Total Revenues 13,736,440$       6,308,417$     2,788,213$  4,793,237$    58%

Beginning Jul - Mar Reserve Remaining Percent

Departments Budget Expenditures Balance Budget Expended

Continuum of Care 85,000$               50,305$          34,695$          59%

ESG - HMIS 222,824               92,627            65,000         65,197           59%

ESG - ADM 19,987                 10,654            5,500           3,833             74%

HUD - PLANNING 21,607                 13,607            8,000             63%

Continuum of Care 349,417               167,194         70,500         111,724         60%

Planning Services 177,838               128,034         49,805           72%

Rural Planning Org 233,969               100,341         133,628         43%

MOTSU 5,079                   5,079              ‐                 100%

MOTSU Follow Up 45,000                 5,377              20,000         19,623           22%

EDA Disaster Recovery 121,785               43,107            78,678           35%

Water Quality Planning Grant 10,154                 8,149              2,005             80%

Matthew Recovery Grant 13,130                 4,228              8,903             32%

Local Gov Services 606,956               294,314         20,000         292,641         50%

Aging Planning & Admin. 355,115               226,925         128,190         64%

Ombudsman & Elder Abuse 207,721               159,815         47,906           77%

Project Care 103,000               79,801            23,199           77%

Family Caregiver Support 151,782               95,424           56,358           63%

AAA Funds to Counties 3,913,770           2,555,245      1,358,525      65%

Area Agency on Aging 4,731,388           3,117,210      ‐               1,614,178      66%

WIOA - 2010 - Admin 486,193            202,656         213,620       69,917           74%

WIOA - 2020 - Adult 1,674,929           529,568         642,258       503,103         51%

WIOA - 2030 - Dislocated Worker 1,300,795           407,432         473,624       419,739         49%

WIOA - 2031 - Hurricane Florence D 2,263,963           923,884         501,995       838,083         52%

WIOA - 2040 - Youth 1,814,073           508,030         866,216       439,827         54%

WIOA-2050 Statewide Activities 209,071               38,841           170,231         19%

WIOA-NC Works Innovation Grant 187,905               38,491           -              149,414         20%

WIOA-2060-Finish Line Grant 79,750                 15,496           -              64,254           19%

Workforce Development 8,016,679           2,664,397      2,697,713   2,654,568      50%

General Operations 32,000                 19,855            ‐               12,145           62%

General Fund 32,000                 19,855            ‐               12,145           62%

Total Expenditures 13,736,440$       6,262,970$     2,788,213$  4,685,256$    46%

Administration 404,972               296,339         ‐               108,633         73%

*Administrative costs are allocated to and included in the department, program or project budgets.

Budget & Actual Expenditures

CAPE	FEAR	COUNCIL	OF	GOVERNMENTS
Cash Balance and

Budget/Expenditure Comparison
FY 2019-2020 (as of March 31, 2020) 

Cash Balance

Budget & Actual Revenues

15



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page left blank on purpose. 

16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



CAPE FEAR COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

RESOLUTION AMENDING PERSONNEL POLICY 

 

WHEREAS the Cape Fear Council of Governments (CFCOG) is a regional council of 

governments organized pursuant to N.C.G.S. sections 160A-470 through 478; 

 

WHEREAS the CFCOG is designated by the State of North Carolina as the Lead Regional 

Organization for Region O, serving Brunswick, Columbus, New Hanover, and Pender counties;  

 

WHEREAS the Executive Committee is the governing board of the CFCOG; 

 

WHEREAS the Executive Committee is responsible for adoption and amendment of the CFCOG 

Personnel Policy pursuant to Section II.C of said policy; and 

 

WHEREAS the Executive Committee desires to update the CFCOG Personnel Policy with respect 

to office closures due to inclement weather, emergencies, and other special circumstances; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Executive Committee of the Cape Fear Council 

of Governments amends the Personnel Policy as follows: 

 

Article X. Terms and Conditions of Employment is amended as follows: 

 

Section K. Inclement Weather Emergency Closure 

 

During inclement weather, the Cape Fear Council of Governments will follow New 

Hanover County’s opening/closing policy.  When the Council of Governments office is 

officially closed due to inclement weather, the staff will receive administrative leave.  If 

the Council of Governments office is open, but individual employees are unable to return 

to work due to the aftermath of the weather, the Executive Director may authorize 

administrative leave. The Executive Director, at his or her discretion, may close the office 

for special circumstances including inclement weather, declared states of emergency, 

pandemics, or other extreme circumstances as good judgement and common practice 

would dictate.  During such emergency closures, the Executive Director may grant paid 

administrative leave to employees or may require employees to perform work duties 

remotely (telework).  If due to the special circumstance an employee is unable to return to 

work after an emergency closure, whether to the office if the office is open or by telework 

if the office is closed but employees are working remotely, the employee may use annual 

leave pursuant to Section XI.A or, on a case-by-case basis, the Executive Director may 

authorize administrative leave or the use of sick leave.  

 

Adopted this 11th day of May 2020. 

 

 

 

 ____________________________    ___________________________ 

Trent Burroughs, Chairman     April D. Radford, Clerk 

29




